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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS 

EASTERN DIVISION 

ECHOSENS, S.A. 

PLAINTIFFS. 

V. 

E-SCOPICS S.A.S.,

DEFENDANT. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

C.A. No. __________________

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

COMPLAINT 

Echosens, S.A. (“Echosens”) by and through its undersigned attorneys, hereby file this 

Complaint against E-Scopics S.A.S. (“E-Scopics”) for infringement of U.S. Patent Nos. 

11,690,592 and 11,980,497 (the “Patents-in-Suit”) and allege as follows: 

PARTIES 

1. Echosens is a French entity, having a principal place of business located at 6 rue

Ferrus, 75014 Paris, France. 

2. Upon information and belief, E-Scopics is a French entity with its principal place

of business located at 931 chemin de la Bosque d’Antonelle, 13090 Aix-en-Provence, France. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

3. This is a civil action seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief for patent

infringement.  Thus, this Court has federal question subject matter jurisdiction under 35 U.S.C. §§

271, and 281 and under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 and 1338(a). 

4. On information and belief, this Court has personal jurisdiction over E-Scopics

under Massachusetts’ long arm statute.  See, e.g., Mass. G. L. c. 223A, § 3(a), (c), (d).  As discussed 

below, E-Scopics’ infringing activities provide this Court with personal jurisdiction over E-
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Scopics.  E-Scopics has used (demonstrated) and offered to sell its Hepatoscope device (“Accused 

Product”), which infringes Echosens’ patent rights, in Boston, MA, in November 2023.   

5. In November 2023, The Liver Meeting (“TLM23”) was held in Boston, MA at the 

Hynes Convention Center.  At TLM23, E-Scopics used the Accused Product. E-Scopics also 

demonstrated to an audience how to use the Accused Product. E-Scopics also imported the 

Accused Product by bringing it into the United States, and specifically into this District and for 

use in this District. 

 

https://www.linkedin.com/posts/e-scopics_tlm23-hepatoscope-escopics-activity-

7136278705261178881-SLR0?utm_source=share&utm_medium=member_desktop.   
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6. E-Scopics offered the Accused Product for sale in Boston, MA at TLM23, stating 

it was “taking orders for #Hepatoscope[] while attending the Liver Meeting.” 

 

https://www.linkedin.com/posts/e-scopics_hepatoscope-hepatoscope-tlm23-activity-

7128405443302825985-W8qu?utm_source=share&utm_medium=member_desktop.  
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7. The infringement of Echosens’ exclusive rights under the Patents-in-Suit by E-

Scopics has damaged and will continue to damage Echosens, causing irreparable harm, for which 

there is no adequate remedy at law, unless enjoined by this Court. 

8. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(c)(3). 

BACKGROUND 

9. On July 4, 2023, U.S. Patent No. 11,690,592 (the “’592 Patent”), entitled “Device 

and Method for Measuring the Viscoelastic Properties of a Viscoelastic Medium,” was duly and 

legally issued by the United States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”).  The ’592 Patent is 

presumed valid under 35 U.S.C. § 282. 

10. The ’592 Patent relates to a device and method used to measure the viscoelastic 

properties of a viscoelastic medium, e.g., a liver.  The invention can be used by a medical 

practitioner to assess whether a patient has liver fibrosis.  

11. Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true and correct copy of the ’592 Patent.  

12. At a minimum, E-Scopics has known of the ’592 Patent as early as the filing of this 

Complaint.  Moreover, E-Scopics was provided notice of its infringement of the ’592 Patent, since 

at least its receipt of a letter sent by Echosens on or around November 20, 2023.1  

13. On May 14, 2024, U.S. Patent No. 11,980,497 (the “’497 Patent”), entitled “Device 

and Method for Measuring the Viscoelastic Properties of a Viscoelastic Medium,” was duly and 

legally issued by the USPTO.  The ’497 Patent is presumed valid under 35 U.S.C. § 282. 

14. The ’497 Patent relates to a device and method used to measure the viscoelastic 

properties of a viscoelastic medium, e.g., a liver.  The invention can be used by a medical 

practitioner to assess whether a patient has liver fibrosis.  

 
1 A copy of the Notice letter is attached hereto as Exhibit H. 

Case 1:24-cv-11373   Document 1   Filed 05/24/24   Page 4 of 13



5 
4878-8704-4540 

15. Attached hereto as Exhibit B is a true and correct copy of the ’497 Patent.  

16. At a minimum, E-Scopics has known of the ’497 Patent as early as the filing of this 

Complaint.   

17. Echosens is the exclusive owner by assignment of all rights, title, and interest in the 

Patents-in-Suit, including the right to bring this suit for damages, and including the right to sue 

and recover all past, present, and future damages for infringement of the Patents-in-Suit. 

18. E-Scopics is not licensed to use the Patents-in-Suit, either expressly or implicitly, 

nor do they enjoy or benefit from any rights in or to the Patents-in-Suit. 

COUNT I 
INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 11,690,592 

 
19. Echosens realleges and incorporates herein by reference the allegations stated in 

paragraphs 1-18 of this Complaint as if set forth fully herein. 

20. E-Scopics has, under 35 U.S.C. §271(a), directly infringed, and continues to 

directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, one or more claims, including 

without limitation at least claims 1 and 8 of the ’592 Patent, by using, selling, offering for sale 

and/or importing in or into the United States E-Scopics’ Accused Product.  Examples of direct 

infringing activity are provided above. Moreover, contractual arrangements with any distributors 

or service providers in the United States, an example of which is provided below, on information 

and belief constitutes an offer for sale, sale and/or importation of the Accused Product in or into 

the United States. 

21. The claim chart attached hereto as Exhibit C describes how the elements of 

exemplary claims 1 and 8 of the ’592 Patent are infringed by the Accused Product. The chart 

provides only exemplary details of E-Scopics’ infringement. Echosens reserves its right to amend 
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and provide its infringement contention, including adding claims, when Preliminary Patent-

Related Disclosures, L.R. 16.6(d), are due. 

22. E-Scopics has, under 35 U.S.C. §271(b), induced infringement and continues to 

induce infringement.  On information and belief, E-Scopics has recommended, encouraged, and/or 

promoted the infringing sales, offers for sale, use and/or importation of the Accused Product in or 

into the United States.  On information and belief, E-Scopics acted with intent to encourage others 

to directly infringe the ’592 Patent by encouraging the use of the Accused Products.   

23. On information and belief, E-Scopics has continued to encourage infringement 

even after receiving notice of the ’592 Patent.  For example, E-Scopics has continued marketing 

the Hepatoscope in the United States, recently announcing its upcoming attendance at the 

Digestive Disease Week® conference in Washington, D.C. on May 18-21, 2024 and at the 

American Diabetes Association Scientific Sessions conference in Orlando, FL on June 21-24.  
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https://www.linkedin.com/posts/e-scopics_bt06-escopics-hepatoscope-activity-

7193530207201374208-whKT?utm_source=share&utm_medium=member_desktop.   

24. E-Scopics has engaged at least distributor or service provider in the United States 

for sales and/or use of the Hepatoscope.   
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https://www.linkedin.com/posts/ashley-martin-as-bs-rdms-278a0525a_gi-fattyliverdisease-mash-

activity-7188961316089298945-xaEv?utm_source=share&utm_medium=member_desktop. 

These promotional activities encouraged the use, sale, offer for sale and/or importation of the 

Accused Product in the United States.  Moreover, the instruction manual at Exhibit E for the 

Accused Product instructs users how to use the Accused Product, which induces at least method 

claim 8 of the ’592 Patent. This conduct is intentional and done with full knowledge of the ’592 
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Patent, and thus on information and belief E-Scopics has engaged in such activities with the intent 

to infringe. 

25. On information and belief, E-Scopics has, under 35 U.S.C. §271(c), engaged in 

contributory infringement, and continues to contribute to infringement, because: there is direct 

infringement of the’592 Patent (see, supra, ¶20; Exh. C); the Accused Product is not a staple article 

or commodity of commerce and it has no substantial non-infringing use; E-Scopics offers to sell 

or sells within the United States and/or imports into the United States the Accused Product, which 

is an apparatus for use in practicing at least method claim 8 of the ’592 Patent the Accused Product; 

and E-Scopics encourages users to perform infringing acts, e.g., use the Accused Product to 

measure a liver, with knowledge of the ’592 Patent; and E-Scopics knows the Accused Product is 

especially made or especially adapted for use in infringement of the ’592 Patent, based at least on 

the notice of the ’592 Patent provided by Echosens.  

26. On information and belief, E-Scopics does not have a reasonable basis for believing 

that the claims of the ’592 Patent are not infringed.  

27. On information and belief, E-Scopics’ Accused Product is available, and marketed, 

to businesses and individuals throughout the United States and in the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts. 

28. Echosens has been harmed as the result of E-Scopics’ infringement, including by 

loss of sales. The infringement of Echosens’ exclusive rights under the ’592 Patent has damaged, 

and continues to damage, Echosens, causing irreparable harm, for which there is no adequate 

remedy at law.  Further, the infringement by E-Scopics and continued infringement after receiving 

notice, including the prior notice letter and this Complaint, constitutes willful infringement. 
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COUNT II 
INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 11,980,497 

 
29. Echosens realleges and incorporates herein by reference the allegations stated in 

paragraphs 1-28 of this Complaint as if set forth fully herein. 

30. E-Scopics has, under 35 U.S.C. §271(a), directly infringed, and continues to 

directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, one or more claims, including 

without limitation at least claim 1 of the ’497 Patent, by making, using, selling, offering for sale 

and/or importing into the United States E-Scopics’ Accused Product. 

31. The claim chart attached hereto as Exhibit D describes how the elements of 

exemplary claims 1 of the ’497 Patent are infringed by the Accused Product. The chart provides 

only exemplary details of E-Scopics’ infringement. Echosens reserves its right to amend and 

provide its infringement contention, including adding claims, when Preliminary Patent-Related 

Disclosures, L.R. 16.6(d), are due. 

32. On information and belief E-Scopics will, under 35 U.S.C. §271(b), induce 

infringement and continue to induce infringement.  On information and belief, E-Scopics has 

recommended, encouraged, and/or promoted the infringing use of the Accused Product and will 

continue to do so.  On information and belief, E-Scopics will continue to act with the intent to 

encourage others to directly infringe the ’497 Patent by encouraging the use of the Accused 

Products.  For instance, E-Scopics has provided demonstrations of the Accused Product and 

partnered with at least one U.S. distributor, and has scheduled attendance at future conferences to 

engage in the same promotional activities for the Accused Product (which also include use, sale, 

offer for sale and/or importation).  See, supra, ¶¶6-7, 23-24; see also Exhibit D (claim chart) and 

Exhibit E (user manual).  On information and belief, E-Scopics will continue to encourage the 

infringing use even after notice of the ’497 Patent.  
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33. On information and belief, E-Scopics has, under 35 U.S.C. §271(c), engaged in 

contributory infringement, and continues to contribute to infringement, because: there is direct 

infringement of the ’497 Patent (see, supra, ¶30; Exh. D); the Accused Product is not a staple 

article or commodity of commerce and it has no substantial non-infringing use; E-Scopics offers 

to sell or sells within the United States and/or imports into the United States the Accused Product, 

which is an apparatus for use in practicing at least claim 1 of the ’497 Patent the Accused Product; 

and E-Scopics encourages users to perform infringing acts, e.g., use the Accused Product to 

measure a liver, with knowledge of the ’497 Patent; and E-Scopics knows the Accused Product is 

especially made or especially adapted for use in infringement of the ’497 Patent, based at least on 

the notice of the ’497 Patent provided by this complaint. 

34. On information and belief, E-Scopics does not have a reasonable basis for believing 

that the claims of the ’497 Patent are not infringed.  

35. On information and belief, E-Scopics’ Accused Product is available, and marketed, 

to businesses and individuals throughout the United States and in the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts. 

36. Echosens has been harmed as the result of E-Scopics’ infringement, including by 

loss of sales. The infringement of Echosens’ exclusive rights under the ’497 Patent will damage 

Echosens, causing irreparable harm, for which there is no adequate remedy at law. Further, the 

infringement by E-Scopics and continued infringement after receiving notice, including this 

Complaint, constitutes willful infringement. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Echosens prays for judgment in its favor and against E-Scopics, 

including but not limited to the following relief: 

Case 1:24-cv-11373   Document 1   Filed 05/24/24   Page 11 of 13



12 
4878-8704-4540 

1. A judgment that E-Scopics’ manufacture, offer to sale, sale, use, and/or importation 

of the Accused Product infringes the Patents-in-Suit either literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents; 

2. A judgement that E-Scopics is inducing and contributing to the infringement of the 

Patents-in-Suit by others;  

3. An order permanently enjoining E-Scopics, its respective officers, directors, agents, 

servants, employees and attorneys, and those persons in active concert or participation with E-

Scopics, from infringing the Patents-in-Suit in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271; 

4. An accounting and awarding of all damages sustained by Echosens as a result of E-

Scopics’ infringing activities; 

5. Pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284, an award of monetary damages compensating 

Echosens for E-Scopic’s past and ongoing infringement of the Patents-in-Suit, in an amount not 

less than a reasonable royalty; 

6. An order awarding Echosens treble damages under 35 U.S.C. § 284 as a result of 

E-Scopics’ willful and deliberate infringement of the Patents-in-Suit; 

7. An Order finding that this is an exceptional case, and an award of reasonable 

attorney’s fees and non-taxable costs;  

8. An award of prejudgment and post-judgment interest; and  

9. Such other relief as this Court may deem just. 

JURY DEMAND 

Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 38(b), Echosens demands a trial by jury of all issues raised by 

this Complaint that are triable by jury. 
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Date: May 24, 2024 Respectfully Submitted By: 

/s/ David A. Simons 
David A. Simons, BBO #638740 
Bryan P. Collins (pro hac vice to be filed) 
Theresa A. Roozen (pro hac vice to be filed) 
Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP 
david.simons@pillsburylaw.com  
bryan.collins@pillsburylaw.com 
theresa.roozen@pillsburylaw.com 
1650 Tysons Boulevard, 14th Floor 
McLean, VA 22102-4856 
Phone: 703.770.7900 
Fax: 703.770.7901 

Attorneys for Plaintiff Echosens, S.A. 
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